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The Meaning Of Life

By Ernest Lee Thompson

Just to be faithful in things that are small,
Just to walk steady where others might fall,

Just to be willing if duty should call;
This is the meaning of life.

Just to be friendly to those I dislike,

Just to act kindly when others would strike,

Just to keep busy with things that are right;
This is the meaning of life

Just to drive somebody’s darkness away,

Just to make brighter the world of today

Just to strew flowers along one's pathway;
This is the meaning of life.

Just to let conscience have perfect control,

Just to have heavenly peace in the soul,

Just to go forward still facing the goal;
This is the meaning of life

Just to do daily whatever one should,

Just to believe in divine fatherhood,

Just to have faith in a future of good;
This is the meaning of life,

Yaken from The Christian Advocals




History Of North Methodist Church

In 1842 Solomon Beers (my great grandfather) laid out forty acres of
land and named this area North Columbus. He, at this time, designated
and gave ground for a school at the corner of Hudson and Neil
Avenues. This area was approximately bounded by North Street and
Arcadia Avenue on the north, the Big Four Rail Road tracks on the
east, Woodruff Avenue on the south, and the Olentangy River on the
west.

The first church in this area known as North Columbus was built at
the northeast corner of Wilcox and High Streets about 1874. It was a
one story building, with a fairly high ceiling, wooden and painted
white. There were two large windows on either side, with small panes
of clear glass. Solid wood doors on the front gave it somewhat the
appearance of a meeting house in a Quaker Settlement. My mother,
Martha Elizabeth Brown, was thirteen years old when she attended
this church and could not recall whether the seats were benches or
straight pews. This church was called the Welsh Congregational
because of so many Welsh settlers in the area. Many Welsh settlers
had moved into North Columbus because of friends that had preceded
them to America. Among the Welsh settlers were the Richard Browns
(my great grandparents) who came to this area in 1853 and attended
this Welsh Congregational Church. Other ancestors of mine settled in
this area in 1802 when there were Indians and few white people in the
wilderness at that time.

In the early winter of 1880 a revival meeting was held in the Welsh
Congregational Church by an Evanglist Way, who was a Free
Methodist. The revival meeting was quite successful, but Mr. Way was
asked to leave. Several families left the church at that time because of
growing differences of opinions in the worship service. They started
with Cottage Prayer meetings in the home of Tilman Grim on North
High Street, just south of Tompkins Street, almost across the street
from the Welsh Congregational Church.

Some half-dozen families; the Benjamin Rushmers, the William
Browns; the B. F. Grims; the James H. Zinns; and the Corwins, were
among those in attendance in this revival meeting and were in-
strumental in starting the Cottage Prayer meetings. The Praver
Meeting, or Society as they referred to it then, increased with interest
and attendance, and they soon had to find a meeting place other than
homes. In the late spring of 1881 they secured the District School
building located on West Hudson Street at Neil Avenue, which was a
brick building and would accommodate about fifty or sixty people.
Hudson Street was then a mud road and Neil Avenue had not been
surveyed.

The Methodist pastor who covered the circuit in this territory was
invited to take charge, Rev. T. A. Turner, who served the Clintonville
Circuit, Clinton Chapel. Thus, the Society identified themselves with
the Methodist Church. They were able to have Sunday School in the
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School building now, and 31 were present the first Sunday. G. A.
Frambes was the first Superintendent, and Benjamin Rushmer was
his assistant.

In 1882 the congregation decided that they needed a building and
subscriptions were taken. A lot was purchased at the southeast corner
of Duncan and High Streets and the Clinton Chapel congregation was
invited to join in the building. Clinton Church was sold in October, 1882
for $700.00. The new church was of red brick and was erected about 30
by 60 feet with a balcony in the rear.

The Methodist Conference united the two congregations and the new
Church was known as the North Columbus Methodist Episcopal
Church.

Many familiar family names now joined others in the new
Congregation: Websters, Legg, Bacon, Immel, Hummel, Coe,
Chestnut, Wilson, Smith, Westervelt, and many others. Rev. Turner
was replaced by Rev. H. L. Whitehead until 1884. Rev. E. H. Nichols
followed for a three-year period, 1884-1887, and while he was there the
Church was completed at a cost of about $3000.00 and dedicated. It was
paid for, and from the beginning this building was filled in Sunday
School, as well as both morning and evening services. A frame ad-
dition was added in the rear, 20 by 30 feet, which housed the primary
department, young people's meetings, prayer meetings, socials, etc.

Rev. John L. Jones was pastor from 1887 - 1889, then the North
Methodist Church became a station, with Rev. Louis Postle as the
regular pastor. He served for five years, from 1889 - 1894,

In 1893 the horse-drawn cars were replaced with electric street cars.
This transportation brought many families north and larger church-
buildings were needed. The original Welsh Congregational Church was
sold and moved across the street between Blake and Maynard Avenues
to be used as a rug weaving factory. The Congregationalists had built
their new building at Blake and East Avenue, and called it the North
Congregational Church. It was nicknamed ““White Church’ because it
was a frame building and always painted white

Following Rev. Postle was the Rev. Thomas H. Clark who served
North Methodist Church from 1894-1897. It was during his term that the
present location was bought and the new church of red brick, costing
$14,000.00 was built. It was dedicated in March 189%. The parsonage
was in back of the church facing East Avenue, and the Church en-
trances were on East Tompkins Street. The house used for the par-
sonage was on the lot when it was purchased, and had an outside
hydrant for drinking and cooking water. There was a cistern with a
pump on the sink in the kitchen, and there was an outside toilet which
was also used by the church members.

Very few streets were paved, but Tompkins Street was. Medary
Avenue School had been built a few years earlier, and Tompkins Street
was paved with blue paving brick. East Avenue was mud in the winter
and dust in the summer. Ravines were numerous in the area. Hudson
Street was also unpaved, and Neil Avenue was impassable in many
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areas north of Woodruff Avenue. West Dodridge Street was paved
after the covered bridge was replaced with an iron structure. West
Lane Avenue was paved, and then later Norwich, Northwood,
Frambes, and Woodruff, just west of High Street. I remember areas
between East Norwich to Patterson Avenue as a woods where cattle
grazed, with the exception of one house between Oakland and Nor-
thwood. It was the first fraternity house north of Ohio State University.

Following Rev. Thomas Clark was the Rev. Joseph Clark in 1897 -
1899. Rev. Joseph Clark had two daughters and they refused to live in
the parsonage, so the Official Board rented a house at 61 W. Northwood
Avenue with a nice stable for their horse and carriage. It had crude
plumbing, as we had in those days, but in the house. Natural gas didn’t
come north of Eighth Avenue until 1902, so we had to use coal for
heating in stoves. If a furnace was owned, it was made of brick and
very dirty.

My family rented the parsonage when I was six years old, so I
remember many church people of those days. It was wonderful. We
were so near the church that people came often to visit or to get hot
water for cleaning, etc. Churches were never heated in those days
unless it was a special service, and on Sundays. The big coal stove
heated the Sunday School room for prayer meetings, socials, etc.

In the first church at the present location, the altar was in the nor-
theast corner. The platform for the organ and choir was elevated.
Several steps down from the choir loft was the rostrum with a center
pulpit and three large chairs for the pastor, visiting preachers, the
District Superintendent and dignitaries. In front of the pulpit was the
communion area with a semi-circle railing all the way around the
altar. There was also a table in front of the pulpit where the Sunday
School Superintendent and the Secretary sat for Sunday School
opening exercises.

The organ in this first church was a pump organ. Using the foot
pedals was rather strenuous, so the organist, Anna Rushmer, paid a
boy five cents to pump the bellows. A velvet curtain on brass rings
somewhat hid the choir when they were seated.

The chandeliers were beautiful. The center one had three tiers of
coal oil lamps with chimneys, and lovely glass globes. There were side
lights as well as two smaller chandeliers in the rear. There was two
circular bay windows to the west side of the church and we often had
receptions in this area. The Sunday School classes used this area for
the study of lessons. The windows were lovely, too. The large one
depicted Christ as the Good Shepherd, and was very inspiring when the
sun was shining on Sunday morning. Other windows were memorials
given by the Epworth League (now known as Methodist Youth
Fellowship) and were engraved with the emblem, “Look up, lift up!™

There was four sections of very comfortable pews. Green ingrain
carpeting covered the floor. Excelsior was used for padding, and of
course, there were no vacuums in those days, so we swept the floor
with brooms and the dust rolled. Even with the vestibules, the muddy

4-

streets caused much extra work to try and keep the church clean.

The Sunday School room was one big room, heated with a coal stove,
and we had our prayer meetings in this room, as well as church din-
ners. When we had a dinner at church we did most of the cooking in our
homes, because the church was equipped with only oil and gasoline
stoves which we then used to keep the food warm. In those days, at the
turn of the century, we had very few telephones, and no automobiles. A
few families had a horse and buggy.

With the coming of Rev. Herbert Scott, who served from 1899-1901,
my family had to move from the parsonage, because the Scotts were
quite happy to live in the parsonage and be near the church, During
Rev. Scott's pastorate many people my age and in their teens united
with the church.

In 1901 Rev. William (Billy) Miller, his wife and two sons came to
North Church. He was outstanding in his efforts to raise money, and we
were soon able to pay the balance of the $14,000 mortgage. Burning the
mortgage was a greal occasion for us. Seven years to pay a $14,000
mortgage doesn’t seem very big in these days, but it was quite a
remarkable task in the early 1900's. Rev, Charles Laughlin served the
church from 1903 to 1906, and his wife, four daughters and one son were
glad to move into the six room parsonage, and they were a fine family,

About this time Broad Street Methodist Church was remodeling
Broad Street was the nicest church in Columbus at that time and they
were buying a new organ, offering to sell North Church their old one. It
was an electric pipe organ, and quite lovely. At about this same time
we were able to purchase a beautiful Wilton velvet carpet from the
Senate Chamber, as they were buying new carpeting then. Velvet
carpeting was rare in those days, and we felt very fortunate to be able
to replace our worn-carpet with velvet. At this time we installed
electricity in the church, changing the lights and wiring for the organ
The choir loft had to be revamped to make room for the new, larger,
organ, so there wasn't a lot of space between the rostrum and the
organ. We usually had about twenty in the choir. Those were happy
days at North Church

In 1906 Rev. N. D. Creamer served North Church and they were the
last family to occupy the parsonage. Their family consisted of five
girls, two of which had married, and three yet at home. During these
years a rift occurred and we lost many fine families, who left North

Church to start a new congregation, Grace Methodist Protestant
Church (Now Maynard Avenue Methodist.) Rev. Creamer was a very
courageous pastor and preached as he believed. He left in 1908,

The Haddox family came next, and Rev. L.. C. Haddox served the
church from 1908 to 1911. The Haddox family lived on E. Mavnard
Avenue, just east of Findley Avenue. They had a large family. Rosalie
and Boyd were very active with young people, sang in the choir and
helped in many other ways. Mrs. Haddox organized a ladies chorus

and this chorus sang for many church-sponsored occasions. We had
many social affairs in the homes of members and in the church. I met
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my future husband when he joined North Church in 1905, and we were
married in 1909.

Rev. Haddox was transferred by the Conference in 1911 and died a
few weeks later in his new church.

Rev. J. N. Eason was our eighth pastor, and served the church from
1911 until 1915. He had three daughters and two sons, and they moved
into a nice brick double on North High Street just south of Maynard
Avenue. (now the parking area for the Rutherford Funeral Home.)
The old parsonage was sold and moved to the corner of Tompkins and
Adams Avenues,

These were years of progress. Many folks were moving north and we
had an active, prosperous church. In 1912 there was a large class of
men in the Sunday School, and an orchestra of twenty-five to thirty was
organized. The congregation had grown to the extent that we needed
more room. The Sunday School facilities were completely inadequate.
The Official Board decided to remove the old Sunday School room, and
build a larger two-story building, utilizing the lot where the parsonage
had been. The new building had a nice, modern, kitchen and dining
area which was used for the primary children on Sundays. We now had
rest rooms in the church for the first time, and hot and cold running
water was a real joy to the members. Approximate cost of the par-
sonage and the new addition was $18,300.00.

The first floor now had class rooms that could be separated, or with
folding doors that could be opened in to the Sanctuary for overflow,
which we often needed. This new addition now afforded us with ample
room for Sunday School classes, board meetings, religious drama, etc.
The second floor added more individual class rooms, and was also used
as a balcony for church services.

During Rev. Eason’s four years with us, the Ladies Aid went to the
Ohio State Fair for the first time and sat up a lunch stand. Mrs. T. C.
Lentz was President. They used a tent, gasoline stoves, and other
borrowed equipment, and had a real successful project, It was such a
success that they leased the ground and built a permanent frame
building on the Fair Grounds and initiated a project that continued
until 1941, During World War II our building was used to store am-
munition. At the close of the war we were reimbursed for the loss of our
equipment, but never returned to have a concession stand at the Ohio
State Fair again.

The present parsonage was built and the Eason family moved in as
soon as it was completed. The Official Board had purchased the lot
where the parsonage now stands, selling the house that was on that lot.
moving it elsewhere on East Tompkins Street.

In 1913 during Rev. Eason’s pastorate we secured a deaconess, Miss
Octavia Hicks. She organized groups of girls and boys into Clubs, the
Queen Esthers, and Standard Bearers (now Mary Reed Circle). Also
the Home Guards, and Mother’s Jewels. She taught a large class of
young ladies; a combination of single and young married women. She
assisted Rev. Eason by calling on new and old members, the sick. as
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well as many in destitute circumstances. All welfare was the
responsibility of the church in those days, as there were no City Funds
for any welfare work. Miss Hicks never divulged the names of those
she helped.

Ohio State University was growing rapidly in those years, also, and
many moved into the area for educational reasons. We had a large
group of students who attended the University, who came to both
Epworth League and to church on Sunday, either walking from the
University area or coming by streetcar.

During the last year of Rev. Eason’s pastorate at North Church,
Mrs. J. M. Bowman was chosen as Director of the Choir. She served in
this capacity for thirteen years, and organists who played for her
furing those years included Mrs. Edward Alcorn; Mrs. Dorris Lentz
Barns; Miss Frances Beal; Mrs. J. C. Bickel; Mrs. Harry Grashel,
Mrs. E. Taylor; and Mrs. Parker Galbraith. Choir members who sang
in Mrs. Bowman'’s choir at one time or another during this time were
Mr. and Mrs. Harry Grashel; Mr. and Mrs. Glenn Pierce; Mr. and
Mrs. Walter Herron; Mr. and Mrs. C. F. Turner; Mr. and Mrs. J
Harvey Zinn; Mr. and Mrs. C. Morley; Mr. and Mrs. C. Robinson; Mr
and Mrs. J. F. Thomason; Mr. and Mrs. C. Hatton; Mrs. Belle Snvder
Taylor; Miss Alice Philo; Mrs. Ottis Wolfe; Mrs. Frank Miller; Mrs
W. M. Carlisle; Mrs. Jessie Cameron; Mrs. Daisy Cunningham; Mrs
Sarah Williams; Mrs. Vera Sedden Beam; Miss Mary Ann Wood-
cock; Mr. and Mrs. W. Richmond; Mrs. Seth Parker; Mrs. Keneth
Gulick; Mrs. Ella Mae Denn;: Miss Madge Hager: Miss Bulah Eason;
Mrs. Carrie Shettler: Miss Margaret Jaycox; Mrs. C. Hoover; Mrs. H
C. Elsas; Miss Ruth Poore; Mr. Allen Trumble; Mr. John Weese; Mr
Clark Wetherholt; Mr. H. C. Elsas; Mr. Harry Placier; Mr. J. Bishop:
Mr. J. DeWitt; Mr. John Cummings; Mr. Arthur Weed; Mr. Charles
Bowman; Mr. John Bowman; Mr. Joseph Bowman; Mr. Charlie
Snyder; Mr. C. M. Wells, Mr. Bernard Schettler, and Mr. O. W. Evans

In 1915 Rev. John Crawford Bickel and his family came to North
Church. Rev. Bickel served as pastor for 15 vears. Rev, and Mrs
Bickel had a son, Paul, and daughter, Eunice. Rev. Bickel was a very
dignified person who always dressed in clergyical attire, and was
never mistaken for other than a preacher. They were fine folks and our
church was very active during these years.

Mrs. Bickel could play the pipe organ if necessary, and son Paul was
an accomplished violinist. It was during these vears that we started

the Sunrise Communion service on Easter Sunday, with Paul and his
mother furnishing the soft background music. Mrs. T C. Lentz and
Clara Grim Jones planned this service and it is still a continued, im
pressive custom at North Church. Eunice was a young girl and very
active in the Church groups. Mrs. Bickel (idylla) taught the Ladies
Bible Class of about 50 or 60 ladies.

We had many fine Evangelists during the Bickel regime, including

George Wood Anderson, and Billy Phiffer, and the meetings would
usually last two weeks. with afternoon Bible Study classes. These were

-
s




well attended, and there was always a large crowd every t and
twice on Sunday, with the entire family in attendance. s .

The First World War began while the Bickels were at North Church
and after we entered the war the churches were closed for seven weeks
to save fuel. All churches were included in this request from City of-
ficials, and this set back some church plans for awhile.

The twenties were busy, interesting, and active years at North
Church. Sunday, March 10, 1929 will always be remembered by the
membership at that time. Those who were in church that Sunday
morning spoke of extreme heat in the Sanctuary, and it was most
fortunate that people had gone home before fire broke through from an
over-heated furnace. Rev. Bickel, with the help of some parishoners,
was able to save only dishes, silver, other kitchen articles, and the
theatre seats from the Sunday School auditorium. Some of the pews
were soaked with water as well as the pulpit furniture. These were
stored at the lumber yard and later sold to a colored church, together
with the communion rail and pulpit chairs. The fire took its full
measure of damage and destruction.

The old church was dear to all of us, and for varied reasons. Many
had been enrolled on the cradle roll and had grown up through the
Sunday School, dedicating their lives to Christ at the altar. Many had
met their future wife or husband at the church and had their children
baptized there. The emotions of those who stood and watched their
church burn were full, and our hearts were close to each other on that
sad day.

Our friends and neighbors at North Congregational Church and the
Christian Advent Church came to our aid, and insisted that we use
their facilities until we could rebuild. As always, in darkest times, it is
the Church and the members of God’s House who holds out a hand to
those in need. However, the Official Board was able to rent the North
High School auditorium for Church services and Sunday School, and
we met there the following Sunday.

Calamity had overtaken our people and now came the time for the
decision; whether or not to rebuild. Most of our people felt we should
rebuild yet a few others thought we should unite with another church,
reminding us that the depression would greatly effect building. But
when we considered that North Methodist Episcopal Church would lose
its identity and be no more, it was practically a unanimous decision
that we rebuild. With the $28,000.00 insurance payment, plans were
made to this end.

It was during this time that Rev. Bickel was sent to the Dayton
District as District Superintendent by the Conference, and Rev. John
Lewis, his wife and son Paul came to serve North Church from 1930-34.

These were difficult years. Mrs. Lewis worked hard to organize
prayer meetings in the homes and also started a Junior Church on
Sunday.

A building committee, J. Harvey Zinn, Carson W. Damron, and J. W.
(Jack) Weese was selected by the Pastor. The first Building Finance
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Committee was headed by Walter T. Liloyd and Floyd L. Relyea and
these fine gentlemen along with some thirty others were successful in
securing pledges for the estimated amount. Mr. Ralph Orr, was
retained as Architect, and Mr. Frank Brown was General Contractor.

The excavation for the basement started May 16, 1931, which was
over two years after the fire. October 11, 1931, Dr. I. E. Miller, then the
District Superintendent, laid the corner stone.

The church structure was erected and under roof and the basement
finished. With a grand processional we marched from North High
School on Sunday morning, December 27, 1931 and held our services
there for the balance of the winter. The next summer we used a part of
the upper floors for Sunday School classes, even though we had only
sub-flooring and no window glass.

The building committee inaugurated the ‘‘pay as you go” planand as
monies were received we finished parts of the building most needed. [t
was necessary to enclose all parts from the elements, and we secured
our beautiful windows made by Von Gerichten Art Glass Company, of
the style found in the Gothic Cathedrals of Europe of the Medieval
period.

In 1934 Rev. Lewis was sent to Zanesville, Ohio and Rev. Fred Riley
came to North Church in an exchange of pulpits. Rev. and Mrs Riley
were natives of England, coming to America soon after they were
married. They had one daughter, Freda. Mrs. Riley was an ordained
preacher in England, and had rode a bicycle to go about her circuit
there. She taught the Sunday School Class which Miss Hicks had
started, and also organized a health and physiology group of women in
the church and neighborhood. Rev. Riley was an excellent preacher
He resigned from the Methodist Conference in Janua ry, 1936

The next rung of our building ladder was reached on April 21, 1935
when the Church Auditorium was used for the first time for services,
and our new organ, a gift from the Ladies Aid, was dedicated Shortly
after that we completed the second floor rooms. the upper stairways,
and all the original plans, with some additions were completed

Rev. Charles B. Harrison followed Dr. Riley, as pastor of North
Church in 1936. It was mainly through his efforts and continued in-

terest that we completed the furnishings, and the interior of the
Church. The Harrison family included his wife, Mary, two sons,
Everett and Edison, and daughter, Marjorie. They were with us for

many years and loved by the membership.

Twelve years after the plans for the new church were made. Bishop
H. Lester Smith dedicated our debt-free church on September 27, 1942,
We had four Sundays of triumphal celebration, and thanked God for
the many blessings that had come to North Church

So many group and individual gifts were acknowledged at this Lime,
and I think it important that they be recorded in this history. The
Women's Society of Christian Service gave the beautiful three-manual
pipe organ, valued then at $8500.00. They also furnished the parior at a
cost of $§1700.00, purchased the pews for $1620.00, bought the pulpit and




made many other donations of equal value and beauty.

The Philathea Sunday School Class furnished their room, bought
forty chairs and donated the lectern. The Crusader and Fellowship
Classes also furnished their own rooms. The Women's Bible Class
donated the iron railing for the balcony, two flags, and other articles.
Mr. and Mrs. Walter T. Lloyd donated the twenty-five bronze plates to
designate the donors of the memorial windows.

Mr. Frank Howard gave the carpet for the center aisle of the Sanc-
tuary. Dr. Carl Damron gave the cross and brass candle sticks, and the
hard-of-hearing equipment. The Baptismal Font was given by Mr. and
Mrs. Glenn Pierce, and the brass flower vases were given by Mrs.
Belle Snyder Taylor in memory of her son, Charles, who was killed in
the war.

The memorial window over the altar in the Sanctuary, depicting
events in the life of Christ, was donated by Mrs. James (Elizabeth)
Zinn. Mrs. J. Harvey Zinn donated all the shrubbery around the church
in memory of her parents. Mrs. W. C. (Emma) Pavey donated the
money to start our beautiful rose garden, and others added to this as
time went on.

Prior to the dedication the interior of the church was newly painted,
which involved several months of hard volunteer labor by Mr. A. N.
Deckard, O. H. Grant, A. A. Monroe, and others. Rev. Harrison con-
tributed many hours of labor himself. Mr. Alex Immel finished the
outside doors and did much work on the inside as well. Mr. George Fox
donated many hours of carpenter labor before the dedication.

My husband and I made many donations, as did many other loyal,
generous members, Such individual items as chimes, kneeling pads at
the altar, desk, clocks, to mention only a few, were donated.

In 1940 Rev. Harrison inaugurated the Anniversary Dinners, to
honor the older, long-time members of North Church. This was the 60th
Anniversary of the Church, and a happy occasion. Gold members
(those who had belonged to North Church from fifty to sixty years)
included my parents, Mr. and Mrs. Edward C. (Martha) Grove; Mrs,
Dora Herron; Mrs. Stella Herron; Mrs. Mary Slyh; Mrs. Callie L.
Slyh; Mrs. Elizabeth Zinn; Mr. and Mrs. Harry (Ellen C.) Snyder; Mr.
and Mrs. William R. (Nellie) Swoish; Mr. and Mrs. J. Harvey (Em-
ma) Zinn. Those taking part in the Banquet program included Harry
E. Grashel, Toastmaster; William R. Swoish; J. Harvey Zinn, Dr. T.
C.Lentz; C. W. Damron; Mrs. J. C. Bickel; Clark R. Wetherholt; Mrs.
Homer S. Bailey; Mrs. T. C. Lentz; Elwood Geyer; and of course, our
pastor, Rev. Harrison.

Silver members (those who had been members from forty to forty-
nine years) included Mr. Alex Immel; Mrs. Samuel F. Maize; Mrs.
Libbie E. Pease; Mr. Frank M. Howard; Mrs. Percy J. Ohlen; Mrs.
Edna Evans; Mrs. J. J. Hagens; Mrs, Ada Lentz; Dr. and Mrs.
(Linnie) Lentz; Mrs. David Knox; Miss Minnie Galbraith: Mr. Walter
L. Herron; Mrs. Lottie E. Thrush; and Mrs. Stella Evans.

The young people were most active at North Church in these years.
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They promoted recreation activities, cook-outs, youth work in relation
to other churches, and sports competition. Youth Fellowship
flourished. The Harrison family was always involved in all church
activities. Mrs. Harrison taught the Philathea Class and was a part of
every project the ladies sponsored.

Rev. Harrison started and promoted the Waffle dinner in 1937, which
became an annual affair at North Church. This always proved to be a
big social gathering, as well as a source of money-raising for the
Church.

In 1940 it was a decision of the Conference to combine the three
Church Societies: the Ladies Aid; Home Missionary, and the Foreign
Missionary Society, into one unified group. The newly organized group
was called the Woman'’s Society of Christian Service, and it has been a
great success in the Church. One meeting was now taking the place of
three,

District officers participated in the organization. I remember Mrs
Bertha Willis and Mrs. James White were present and assisted in the
ceremony. Officers were elected at the [irst meeling, and Rev
Harrison installed them. It was a lovely occasion. In order to become a
member of the W.S.C.S. one had to pledge her prayers, her service,
and her gifts for promoting the Kingdom of God. Mrs. H. S. Bailey was
elected the first President, and she was followed by Mrs. Perry E

Rutherford, Mrs. Charles W. Pavey, Mrs. L. B. Hiall, Mrs. Alfred Hale,
Mrs. Charles Clark, Mrs. Robert DuBoux, Mrs. James Smith, and Mrs
Cyril Ward.

When the Charter was presented from the District it was signed by
those joining, who then made a contribution. We have continued to
have many fine years working together for one cause. The pledge to
the District for 1970 is $1200.00, which will be given by individual
pledges of the members, and from the two main projects during the
coming year. In the fall we have the Church Bazaar with a turkey
dinner, and in the spring the annual waffle dinner. Many im-
provements at the church and parsonage are also taken care of by the
Woman's Society of Christian Service.

The forties were busy, progressive years at the Church. In the
summer of 1949 the water pipes broke in the parsonage causing much
damage to the house and furnishings. It was modernized, carpeted,
and a stove and refrigerator purchased for about $10,000.00

On April 26, 1952 Zinn Hall was dedicated. This was an addilion to the
west and built as a place of worship for the children. The Zinn family
donated the money to build this lovely addition to the Church, which
cost over $40,000.00, in memory of their sons Ciyde and Walter. The

furnishings were donated by individuals and groups, such as the altar
and chairs, and I cannot recall the particular gift or the giver. In the
early fifties our Church membership was beiween 1100 and 1200 in-
dividuals, and these were peak years.

In 1954 the kitchen was refurnished, costing $8,500.00.

October 13, 1955 was a happy occasion at .\u. h Church when we
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celebrated our Diamond Jubilee with an address by Bishop Hazen G.
Werner, and a ba honoring Gold and Silver Members of North.
Members who had belonged to the church from fifty to seventy-two
years were as follows: J. Harvey Zinn; Mrs. J. Harvey Zinn; Mrs.
William Swoish; Mrs. Estella Herron; Mrs. Harry Snyder; Harry
Snyder; Mrs. Percy J. Ohlen; Mrs. Edna Evans; Mrs. J. J. Hagans;
Mrs. Ada Lentz; Mrs. T. C. Lentz; Mrs. Oscar Evans; Mrs. Ollie
Foreman; Mrs. Perry E. Rutherford; Hugh M. Pavey; Mrs. Glen S.
Pierce; Mrs. Emma Pavey; Herbert A. Slyh; Mrs. Pearl Yost; Mrs.
Elsie Seyfert; Mrs. Hugh Pavey; Mrs. Nona Harris; Mrs. Lillian
Harris; Mrs. C. W. Damron; Miss Daisy Cunningham, and Perry E.
Rutherford.

In 1958 a beautiful terrazzo floor was laid in the dining room, kitchen,
hall and rest rooms. The ladies bought new carpet for the parlor and
Sanctuary, and the Philathea Class replaced their carpet. We put the
old carpeting in the Sunday School rooms on the second floor.

In 1959 the Harrisons, with the help of members of the church, went
on a trip to Europe and the Holy Land, taking many pictures of in-
terest. Rev. Harrison's hobby was traveling and picture-taking, and
through the years he shared his trips by lectures and slides.

On May 27, 1960 a reception was given in their honor. Rev. Harrison
was retiring from North Church after almost twenty-five years of
devoted service. They said it was the finest affair in their lives, The
church was packed, and the program, a surprise, was “This is Your
Life, Rev. Harrison." My son, Bill Rutherford was the master of
ceremonies and continued to surprise the pastor with the many details
of his life that had been obtained and were then revealed. Mrs. Charles
W. (Gwen) Pavey and I had worked for many weeks to make this
program a reality. We had written all of their children for help,
secured the family album and a scrap book that Rev. Harrison had
kept of his ministry, and had invited old friends and relatives for the
occasion. In all some twenty-three relatives and friends were here
from all over the United States, spending the night and having break-
fast the next morning at the church.

A silver chest made by Leonard Schletter was presented to the
Harrisons with $1043.00, which represented small and large gifts from
the membership. Refreshments were served in the Dining room
following the program, and we really had out all of our finery for the
event. . .silver, dishes, flowers, and the parlor furniture made a nice
background for the receiving line. Everyone helped to make this grand
finale a memorable one for the membership and for a Pastor and his
wife who had given so much of themselves and their talents to our
church for twenty-five years.

In June, 1960 the Rev. Walter C. Eyster came to North Church. His
wife, Betty, sons John, James and Jerry, moved to Columbus from
Chicago. Needless to say, his ministry was a difficult one, following a
beloved pastor who had been at the church for twenty-five years. Prior
to his coming to North Church the.¢ were many changes going on in
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the Methodist Conference, and he helped educale our Oflicial Board
concerning the different Commissions set up by the Conference. He
organized the various Commissions, such as Evangelism; Visitation;
Christian Social Concerns; Missions; Department of Christian
Education in Sunday Schools; and Youth groups. Rev. Eyster secured
our first paid Choir Director, and Mrs. Franklin (Phyllis) Wolf
directed a youth choir of the young people, and small children. Rev.
Eyster was very faithful about taking communion to those members of
the Church who could not attend.

The Eysters were an interesting family. Their older son John was in
the University and studying for the ministry; James was a student at
Ohio State University, and the younger boy Jerry was in Junior High
School at that time. In June, 1962 Rev. Eyster was transferred to the
northeast Ohio Conference and given a Church in Galion, Ohio.

Rev. Charles Lovell came to North Church {rom Biglow Church in
Portsmouth, Ohio. We were happy to welcome Rev. Lovell, his wile
Evelyn, daughter Ruth Ann, and son David to our Church family. An
office had been set up in the Fellowship Class Room during Rev
Eyster’s term, and we had a part-time Secretary at the Church. Rev,
Lovell was given the Philathea Class Room for a much-needed Study,
and it was very generous of these classes to make allowances for
progress.

Rev. Lovell started having Christmas eve Candielight services,
which were well attended by members and the neighborhood. He also
continued our interest in the Commissions, emphasizing the
Missionary program.

The parsonage was re-decorated and recarpeted by the Woman's
Society while the Lovells were with us, and the interior of the church
was repainted. Small outside repairs were made as the need arose, and
the church continued to serve its loyal members and the neighborhood
The sixties brought inter-city problems to the church area, and the
immediate neighborhood was a changing one. Older members
remained loyal, knowing that the need for the Church was more im-
portant than ever before.

Rev. J. R. Wynd, a retired minister, and his wile, joined us at North
Church to assist the pastor in calling on the sick and shut-ins. He was a
great help in many other ways to Rev. Lovell, and also filled the pulpit
occasionally. He and his wife became a part of the congregation, and
were loved by all who knew them. He retired again, in 1970.

During Rev. Lovell's pastorate our faithful organist for thirty-five
years, Geraldine Wacker, retired. A reception was given in her honor
with gifts in appreciation of her long service to North Church. Mr
James Eisenhart also retired as Church treasurer after thirty-five
years. He was a fine gentleman and had given many hours of service to
the Church.

Rev. Lovell was with us for six years, leaving in 1968 to move to
North College Hill Methodist Church in Cincinnati, and the Rev. Ray C.
Greene came to North from Hilliard Methodist
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the Woman's Society redecorated the kitchen, powder room, and Pastors Of North Methodist Church
second floor of their new home. Drapes were also purchased at this
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time. Rev.T. A Turner 1880-1882
In the later part of the sixties the Methodist Conference and the '

United Brethren Churches united, and North Church now was officially Rev. H. L. Whitehead 1882-1884

known as North United Methodist Church. It was with much regret

that Mr. and Mrs. Ray Fullmer resigned as Communion Stewards Rev. E. A. Nichols 1884-1887

after many, many years of faithful service. An altar Committee was
organized with Mrs. Milton Holden as Chairman, and this committee

Rev. John L. Jones 1887-1889
functioned for all details connected with the Communion and the altar.
The choir was disbanded during this time, and we had various paid Rev. Louis Postle 1889-1894
soloists for church services.
After two years with us Rev. Greene retired due to ill health, and Rev. Thomas Clark 1894-1897
Rev. Howard Bulkley, his wife and family came to us from North
Linden United Methodist Church, in June, 1970. His wife's name was Rev. Joseph Clark 1897-1899
Mary Jane, and his children were Ann, Phillip and Steven.
The seventies present new challenges to the Church and to every Rev. Herbert Scott 1899-1901
individual member. We have enjoyed the blessings of Christian
fellowship and worship, but must realize that our responsibilities as Rev, William Miller 1901-1903
Christians never end. May we each continue to serve by praying,
working, and giving, to further the Kingdom of God in the world and in Rev. Charles Laughlin 1903-1906
the lives of us all, as children of God.
Rev. N. C. Creamer 1906-1908
Mrs. Perry E. (Ruth Ellen Grove) Rutherford
Rev. L. C. Haddox 1908-1911
Rev. J. N. Eason 1911-1915
Rev. J. C. Bickel 1915-1930
Rev. John Lewis 1930-1934
Rev. Fred Riley 1934-1936
Rev. Charles B. Harrison 1936-1960
Rev. Walter Eyster 1960-1962
Rev. Charles Lovell 1962-1968
Rev. Ray C. Greene 1968-1970
Rev. Howard Bulkiey 1970-
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In 1819 Clinton Township was an area five miles square, bounded by
Rathbone Road on the north, Cleveland Avenue on the east, Fifth
Avenue on the south, and Olentangy (then Whetstone) River on the
west. In the year of 1819 the first Methodist Church in the township was
organized; in fact the first denominational church to be organized in
the area.

Charter members of this first church were: Thomas Bull and wife;
Nathan T. Bull; Alonson Bull; Edith Bull; Fidelia Wilson: Abel
Tinekum and wife; Louis Gay and wife; Eber Wilson and wife: Jason
Bull and wife; and widow Delano. For about two years the meetings
were held in a log house on the Eber Wilson farm, which included what
is now known as Whetstone Park. Two Methodist circuit riders. John
Tivis and LeRoy Swormstedt preached on alternate Sundays. The
congregation then met at the brick home of Thomas Bull for the next
two years until his death in 1823. His home was on the east side of High
Street between Dunedin Road and Piedmont Road and later became
known as the Pegg residence. After Mr. Bull's death, the meetings
were held in the log school house (built in 1815) which was located on
the west side of High Street opposite what is now Walhalla Drive.

In Thomas Bull's will, recorded September 25, 1823, one-half acre of
land was bequeathed. . . . . “‘to the Methodist Episcopal Church for the
purpose of building a comfortable house for a church to meet in for the
worship of Almighty God...... P

Funds were raised and in 1838 Clinton Chapel was built. Trustees for
the Church were Alonson Bull, Thompson Bull, Jason Bull (all three
were sons of Thomas Bull who had given the land), Andrew Wilson and
Solomon Beers (my great grandfather.) Jason Bull was not only a
Doctor, but a Methodist circuit rider as well. The church building was
52 feet long and 37 feet wide, was quite substantial and still stands at
the corner of Walhalla and North High Street. The foundation was 56
inches wide of glacial boulders, and the building was of brick made of
clay from the hillside and burned on the spot. Walls were 21 inches
thick at the base and tapered to sixteen inches at the top of the second
story. Immense cross beams were hand hewn from the primeval forest
and the roof was covered with split oak shingles. As was the custom.
the Sanctuary was on the second floor and was reached by wooden
steps on the outside of the building. Although the building was rec-
tangular the symbol of the cross was distinguished by dormers on the
north and south sides of the roof representing the arms of the cross.
The lower ground floor was used as a stable for horses that had been
driven many miles by those attending the services. This also helped to
heat the floor of the Sanctuary. This church was used for 44 years.

The church building was a regular station on the Underground
Railway and hid many runaway slaves. After darkness Pyrum Hunt
and his wife Polly, who acted as conductors on the Underground
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Railway, would take the slaves to the next station, hiding them in the
middle of a load of straw or hay. There was a small room on the first
floor where they spent the daylight hours.

The vigor and enterprise of this early Clinton Chapel congregation
can be read in the Conference minutes of the 1870's. In 1872 when A. B,
Riker was pastor, the records show 78 officers and teachers in the
Sunday School, 370 Sunday School scholars, and an average at-
tendance of over 400. 810 volumes in the Sunday School Library, 282 full
church members with 17 more on probation, 20 new members of the
church by conversion, $175.00 given to the Home Missions, $205.00 from
the Women's Society for Foreign Missions, and many other items of
interest was added to the report. The minister's salary had been fixed
at $800.00, but he actually received $900.00.

In 1874 Rev. W. W. Cherrington was the pastor, and the records show
that 125 families of the church subseribed to the Christian Advocate. In
1881 Rev. T. A. Turner was pastor, and Conference records show 165
full members, a Sunday School enroliment of 340, $606 cash salary paid
to the pastor and the church building was valued at $8500.00.

On June 2, 1882, while Rev. Turner was pastor and Rev. Isaac F.
King was presiding elder, the Quarterly Conference decided that the
church should be sold. The reason given......" change in population so
that the location of said house of worship had become in-
convenient...... " It was purchased October 25, 1882 by David B. Walcut
for $700.00, which was given to North Columbus Methodist Episcopal
Church, organized in 1880.

References:

Franklin County Court Records
Minutes of Ohio Methodist Conferences, 18501900

History of Columbus. . . .Orpha Moore

History of Columbus. . . .Omman Hooper
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Personal Records. . . .Mrs. Perry E. (Ruth Ellen Grove) Rutherford
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History Of North Columbus, Ohio

One of the earlier settlers of Franklin County, Ohio was David Beers
(my great, great grandfather) who was a native of New Jersey and
born about 1746. When seven years of age he and his two-year old sister
were stolen by the Indians. The two children and their widowed Mother
- were going on a journey at that time on horseback, when all were
captured by Indians. The children were separated from their Mother,
whom they never saw again, and were taken into Canada.

David was kept in captivity for seven years when by an exchange of
prisoners following the French and Indian Wars, he was released. His
sister remained with the Indian tribe and later lived near what is now
Upper Sandusky, Ohio, after the Wyandotte Tribe had moved west-
ward. She lived all of her life with the Indians, and successively
became the wife of three Indian Chiefs. Her last husband was the well-
known Wyandotte Chief “Between the Logs.” He was converted to
Christianity in November, 1819, and became a licensed Methodist
preacher and a speaker of much eloquence. She never bore children.

After David Beers had settled in Ohio he heard of a white woman
living with the Wyandottes in the northern part of the state. He
travelled the distance to investigate, and found his long-lost sister.

When David was first released from the Indians he lived in Penn-
sylvania. He married Elizabeth Schlegel, daughter of Christopher von
Schlegel, who came from Saxony, and Anna Marie Antrim.
Christopher von Schlegel first settled in New Castle, Delaware, after
arriving in this country from Rotterdam. He was listed in the book,
‘“Names of Early Swiss and German immigrants"' by Runn, as sailing
from Rotterdam in October 16, 1751. He died in York, Pennsylvania in
the late 1700's.

There were nine children born to David and Elizabeth Beers:
Conrad, 1784-1862; Peter, who moved to Iowa; Moses, who moved to
Missouri; Catherine, who married D. P. Wilcox, and also moved to
Missouri; David, Jr., 1791-1874, who married Margaret Rened in 1818;
Elizabeth, 1794-1868, who married Ranson Coe; Rachel, 1805-Unknown,
who married a gentleman named Wheaton; Solomon, 1802-1872,
married Eliza Pennington in 1834; and George Washington, 1810-1880,
who never married.

David, Elizabeth, and their children moved from Pennsylvania to
Ohio in 1802. They first went to Fairfield County, but moved within a
year to Franklin County. David built a log cabin home in Clinton
Township. This cabin is still standing with the date 1804 cut in the stone
slab door step. It is the oldest remaining house in Franklin County.
David also built the first Grist Mill in Franklin County, in 1810. This
was located on the east side of Olentangy River (then called Whetstone
River) north of Dodridge Street. The Mill was sold in 1816 to David's
son-in-law, D. P. Wilcox, who operated it until 1839 when he sold it to
James Mateer. Mr. Mateer subsequently sold it to John R. Piatt, who
was succeeded by the Messers. Hess.
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David Beer’s cabin was built on a tract of land what is now North
High Street, just north of Dodridge in 1804. In a Columbus history
published in 1893 they have a photograph of the cabin on that site. The
cabin was square and very plain with two front doors. There was a
stairway with trap door leading to the loft. The logs, squared and
beautifully dovetailed, were carefully numbered and re-erected on the
present site at the rear of 40 E. Norwich Avenue exactly 100 years after
the cabin was built. They also moved the original fireplace.

David Beers, Sr., was a great friend of the Indians who were still
living in the surrounding country. He knew and understood their ways.
His cabin was used as a Trading Post for the Indians. He died in 1850 at
the age of 104.

Their son Solomon Beers (1802-1872 was my great grandfather. He
married Eliza Pennington March 28, 1834. Eliza was born in 1810 and
died in 1848. She was the daughter of George Pennington.

Solomon lived in Clinton Township, Franklin County, Ohio all of his
life and he had many business interests. In 1852 Solomon and his
brother, George Washington Beers, laid out forty acres into lots on the
Columbus and Worthington Road (the present North High Street)
about a mile south of Clintonville. They recorded the plat in the Court
House records and named the area North Columbus.

The Columbus and Worthington Plank Road, or Turnpike Company,
was chartered by the legislature March 23, 1849, to construct a road
from Columbus to Worthington with the privilege of extending it to
Delaware. The Company consisted of Solomon Beers, John Phipps,
John Piatt, Philip Fisher, and Robert Neil. The Company chose the old
bed of the Columbus and Sandusky turnpike for their road, which was
finished in 1850. This was a cord road with a toll gate located about the
present Olentangy Street. In January, 1851 the [irst dividend was
declared. The capital stock was $27,850.00 with power (o increase to
$50,000.00.

During the Civil War, Camp Thomas was established at a point near
the Columbus-Worthington Road. It was {irst occupied by the regular
United States Infantry, and commanded by Col. H. B. Carrington. This
camp was situated on the property of Solomon Beers. Today's location
of the camp would be from Arcadia on the north to E. Maynard on the
south, High Street on the west, to the vicinily of Adams Avenue on the
east. The Commissary building stood until about 1965 on the northwest
corner of E. Dodridge at East Avenue, and was buiit of frame with flat
boards vertical instead of horizontal. This was a land-mark that many
remembered of that day.

Solomon had two children from his marriage: Elias Beers, who
served his country from the North and the Reliel Corps formed at the
close of the Civil War was named in his honor. He lost a leg in the War
His daughter, Eliza Beers, married William J. Brown from Wales. She
was my grandmother.

Mrs. Perry E. (Ruth Ellen Grove) Rutherford
.. 1970
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Directory North Methodist Episcopal Church

October, 1898

Adams, Mr. and Mrs, John E, (Mary)
44 W. Northwood Avenue

Aldrich, Dalsy
Worthington Road, Clintonville

Armstrong, Mrs. Mary L.
Evanston

Ashwell, Mr. and Mrs, Thomas H. (Hattle)
272 W. Woodruff Avenue

Aston, Isaac C.
N. Broadway, Clintonvilie

Atwell, Mrs. Mary
151 Weber Avenve

Bacon, Mr. and Mrs. D, Sadosa (Isabelle)
Periey, Daisy, John W_, Sarah, and Nettie
River Road

Bailey, Mrs. F. M. (Ellen)
Worthington Road, Clintonville

Bailey, Maude
2572 1/ 2 N. High Street

Baker, Rev, and Mrs. Perley A, (Lillie)
Indianola Summit, & Fourth Stree!

Baker, Mrs, Flora (probationer)
8 Robinsen Row, E. Hudson

Barnes, Mr. and Mrs. Frank B, (Emma M.)
High Street, Clintonville

Barnhouse, Mr. and Mrs. Daniel (Laura H.)
Pear! Barnhouse
2463 Findlay Avenue

Barton, Mrs. Victoria B.
76 W. Northwood Avenue

Barton, Ray (probationer)
76 W. Northwood Avenue

Beck, Mrs. Ella
Olentangy Park

Bennington, Mrs, Mary A,

2487 Dayton Avenue

Benns, Mr. and Mrs. George W. (Annie)
263% Dayton Avenue

Beymer, Mrs. A. S. (M. Laura)
33 W. Tompkins Avenue

Blackburn, Clay D.
39 Buttles Avenue

Bohlen, Mrs. Mary
Como Avenue, Clintonville

Boyd, Emma
38 W, Woodruff Avenue

Bright, Frank J. and Willlam (probationers)
High Street, Clintonville

Brown, Mr. and Mrs, Willlam J, (Eliza)
2532 East Avenue

Brown, Mr. and Mrs. S. Stewart (M. Alice)
35 W. Lane Avenue

Brown, Mr. and Mrs, Charles H. [Elizabeth)
2097 1/ 2 N. High Street

Brown, Mrs. Lillie
2610 Medary Avenue

Brown, Mr. and Mrs. James W, (Celia)
2452 Dayton Avenue

Campbell, Clyde
24 E. Norwich Avenue

Capell, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas O. (Nettie)
Grace and Mary
2584 Terrace Avenue

Carhar!, Mr. and Mrs. Raiph E. (Alice S.)
Clara Carhart
89 E. Duncan Avenye

Chantler, Walter
116 W, Northwood Avenue

Cheek, Mot and Ross
116 W, Norwich Avenue

Clemens, Mr. and Mrs, William (Cynthla)
61 W, Northwood Avenue

Clark, Rev. and Mrs, S. R. (Elien A,)
Anna H., Russell B, and Willlam
1097 Neil Avenue

Clark, Rev. Thomas H (Bertha Z.)
W. Maynard Avenue

Clark, Mrs. Joseph (Harlett B,)
Maude and Marie G.
60 W. Northwood Avenue

Clark, Mrs., Ann
Russell Clark
Olentangy Street

Clark, Mrs. Lucy
Harry Clark
246 W, Woodruf! Avenye

Coe, Mr. and Mrs. Milan A. (Anna)
49 North Street

Conwell, Mr_ and Mrs. Eimer S, (Elva)
84 W. Frambes Avenue

Cook, Mrs. Julia
Laura Cook
2497 N. High Street

Corbin, Henry H.
2404 Summit Street

Corbin, Lucy
2448 Dayton Avenue

Coutellier, Mrs. Clara
26 W. Norwich Avenue

Damron, Carson W.
79 E. Third Avenue

Darrah, Hattie
Evanston

Davis, Forest and Govner
2525 Deming Avenue

Davis, Thomas D. and Amy
S0 E. Norwich Avenue

Dean, Mr. and Mrs. John D. (Mary)
140 W, Woodruf! Avenue

Densmore, George A,
rear 2655 N. High Street

Derflinger, Clara
80 W. Franklin Avenue

Devou, Mr. and Mrs. William J. (ida)
118 E. Patterson Avenue

Elwinger, Laura B,
2402 Eas! Avenue

Fortenbacher, Mrs. Emiline
56 E. Dodridge Street

Fouty, Leroy
2593 Terrace Avenue

French, Mabel (probationer)
2633 N. High Street

Fretwell, Mrs, Elizabeth
Oakland Avenue, Clintonville

Fulton, Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. (Nellie)
Maggie, Jessie May, Lida and Artie

194 E. Tompkins Street

Galbraith, Mrs. Margare!

Minnie Galbralth

145 E. Duncan Stree!

Geissinger, Mr. and Mrs. James J. (Henrietta A.)
Maggie E. and A. Wayne

2548 N, High Street

Givens, Mr. and Mrs. Newton E. (Dora)
76 W. Frambes Avenue

Goldsmith, Lavina
268 Oak Street

Gooding, Mrs. Anna M,
Edith M. and Elmer
Indianola Avenue, cor. Oakland

Goulding, Mr. and Mrs. Jabez (Ruth)
Mary and James Govlding
Seventeenth Avenue near Fourth

Graham, Florence C,
Kate M. Graham (probationer)
144 W. Lane Avenue

Grim, Mr. and Mrs. B. Franklin (Margare!)
Richard W. and Maude M,
41 North Avenue

Grim, Mr. and Mrs. Mortimer F. (Emma)
52 W. Dodridge Street

Grim, Mrs. Laura
2491 N, High Sireet

Grooms, Mrs. Jennie
Iva ang Letla Grooms
212 E. Eleven!h Avenye

Groves, Mr. and Mrs. Edward (Mattie E.)
2533 East Avenue

Grube, Mrs. Rebecca
Evanston

Guess. Mrs. Nina Maude
Como Avenue, Clintonvilie

Guihrie, Mrs. Margare!
Evanston

Handley, Mrs. Lirzie
Scott Handley
29 Clinton Avenue

Harbarger, Mr, and Mrs. James W. (Ada)
Sadie Harbarger
High Street!, Clintonville

Harkins, Mrs. Frances
Mary C., ana Rose
76 W, Woodryfl Avenue

Harris, Charles B
17 E. Norwich Avenue

Hautee, Chester B
37 E. Frambes Avenye

Hendrixson, Dr. and Mrs. Oliver P. (Aima E )
26 E. Duncan Street
Herron, Mr. and Mrs. Beecher (Dora)
55 E. Tompkins Street!

Herron, Mr. and Mrs. Walter L. (Estelia)
57 E. Tompkins Siree!

Hess, Mrs. Amanda

B2 E. Duncan Stireet

Hillery, Mr_ and Mrs. Charles L. (Ella D.)

34 W. Northwood Avenue




Holcomb, Mr. and Mrs. Henry (Daisy)
320 E. Duncan Street

Holmes, Mrs. Ida
180 W. Frambes Avenue

Homel, Mr. and Mrs. John (Lydia)
Evanston

Hoover, Susie and Flossie (probationers)
2412 N. High Street

Howard, Mr. and Mrs. Frank (Dorothea)
54 W. Tompkins

Howard, Mrs. Mary E.
175 W. Frambes Avenve

Howard, Mrs. Louise
220 E, Tompkins Avenue

Humes, Jesse
2463 Findlay Avenwue

Hummel, Lovisa
121 E. Duncan

Hyde, Mr. and Mrs. Walter (Maude)
37 W. Norwich Avenue

Immel, Mr. and Mrs, Alexander (Lulu)
2445 Eas! Avenue

Innis, Mr. and Mrs. Maxwell P, (Mary E.)

opp. Fair Ground, E, 17th Avenue

Jaycox, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas (Ella)
Ethel Jaycox
2579 Deming Avenue

Kenney, Mr. and Mrs. James F. (Minnie)
117 W, Norwich Awvenue

Kiefer, Mr. and Mrs. Samuel (Anna B.)
166 W. Lane Avenue

Killits, Mr. and Mrs. John F, (Emma A.)
35 E. Duncan

Kiner, Mrs. Pauline
Mock Road

Kiner, Emma P,
Harbor Road, NW cor. Mock Road

Knox, Mr, and Mrs, David (Sarepta)
Ethel M. and Ella M. (probationer)
310 Wyandotte Avenue

Lang, Mrs. Rebecca
George Lang
2578 Terrace Avenue

Latham, Mrs. Minnie
1085 1/ 2 N. High

Legg, Mr. and Mrs. Luke T. (Orella)

Pearl H,, Walter, Amason W., Mrs. AW. (Effie)

Worthington Road, Clintonville

Legg, Mr. and Mrs. Charles T, (Sadle)
River Road

Lentz, Henry P,
Fairview Avenue, Clintonville

Lentz, Dr. and Mrs. Thomas C. (LIillle)
2367 Willlams Street

Lentz, Mr. and Mrs. Henry W.B. (Ada)
72 E. Sixth Avenue

Lentz, George and Maude
51 Souder Avenue, West Side

Lewis, Mrs. Phoebe
2497 N. High Street

Lingo, Mr. and Mrs. William (Mary Catherine)
Earl T,, Ora and Grace
82 W, Dodridge

Littie, Mr. and Mrs, Martin V.8, (Frances)
Worthington Road, Clintonville

Long, Mrs, Kate
Eva Long
137 W, Lane Avenue

Loop, Mr. and Mrs. George W. (Eliza)
Ida M. Loop
54 Northwood Avenue

Lovegrove, Mrs. Kate
Anna Lovegrove
Worthington Road, Clintonville

Maize, Mr. and Mrs. Samuel F, (Dora)
Evanston

Masters, Mr. and Mrs. Leonard (Margare! J.)

Flora, Herber!, Minnie, Sadie, Maggie, and Harry

132 W. Frambes Avenue

Masters, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. (Myrtle)
61 W. Northwood Avenue

Masters, Fred
76 Clinton Avenue

Mattick, Mrs. Minnie
1289 E. Dennison Avenue

McClintock, Chester
112 W. Frambes Avenue

McFariand, Maude
2573 N. High Street

Meade, Carrie
164 W. Woodruf! Avenue

Merrick, Mr. and Mrs, Franklin (Diantha)
2580 Deming Avenue

Mick, Mrs. Josephine
135 E. Hudson

Mitchell, Mr. and Mrs. Joseph (Mattie D.)
314 W, Frambes Avenue
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Muns, Mrs. Fannie H.
2564 Deming Avenue

Nichols, Rev. and Mrs. E.N
High Street, Clintonvliile

Nigh, Mrs. Mary J.
Winnie Nigh
63 E. Dodridge Avenye

Qare, Alfred
55 E. Norwich Avenue

Oufcall, Mr. and Mrs. George W. (Emma)
39 E. Duncan

Outcalt, Mrs. Sallie
86 E. Duncan

Packard, Clifford

Sarah Packard [probationer
alley rear 135S E. Duncan

¢

Pavey, C. William

28 W. Lane Avenue

Pease, Mrs. Libbie E.
65 W. Tompkins

Pervis, Mrs. Louise
272 W. Woodruf! Avenue

~Peters, Mrs. Delilah
Daisy Peters
58 E. Maynard Avenue

Peters, Ethel E.
319 Eighth Avenue

Philo, Mr. and Mrs, Robert J. (Annie M.)
Archie and May Philo
2709 Neil Avenue

Phinney, Abbie P,
Worthington Road, Clintonville

Pickens, Eva
26) E. Rich Street

Pleasant, Mr. and Mrs, Henry H. (Virginia A.)
141 E. Mudson

Rambo, Mrs. Alice M,
&0 W. Tompkins

Richards, Rev. and Mrs. Ira A. (Ellen C.)
Ray S., Ruth C., Margaret C. and Lucius
Fourth Street, Cor, Oakland

Rivers, Catharine
& W. Northwood Avenue

Rhoades, John A. and Maurice
130 E. Patterson Avenue

Rhoads, Mr. and Mrs, N. Sherman (Mary)
57 W. Tompkins

Rhoads, Belle
16 Robinson Row, E. Mudson

Robinson, Mr, and Mrs. John M. (Sarah)
Russell and Myrtie M,
2572 Terrace Avenue

Robinson, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. (Else T.)
114 E. Palterson Avenue

Rowland, Mr. and Mrs. Simon (Kate)
Fern Rowland
Robinson Bik., N. High

Rushmer, Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin (Charlotte)
Anna Rushmer
52 W. Dodridge

Sealy, Mrs. Lucinda
2630 Neil Avenue

Seeds, Mr. and Mrs. William H. (Stelia M.)
116 W. Norwich Avenue

Selby, Mamie and Grace
2459 East Avenue

Shannon, Mrs. Myrtie E.
59 W. Duncan

Shaw, Mrs. Ella
Ethel ang John W. (probationer)
183 E. Duncan Siree!

Sherman, Mrs, Mercy
57 E. Dodrigge

Sherman, Mrs. Sarah
2607 N. High

Siyh, Mr. and Mrs. Jacob R. (Mary)
Herber! Siyh
¥ E. Tompkins

Siyh, Mrs, Callie L
2541 N. High Street

Smith, Mrs, Mary
Peari, Rhoda and Edna
&0 W. Tompkins

Smith, Mr. and Mrs. Dan Laws (Ella May)
Ralph (probationer), Alan B., and Helen B
96 E. Wooarut! Avenue

Snapp, Jacob W. and Emma J. (probationers)
High Strest, Clintonviiie

Snyder, Mr. and Mrs. Harry (Elien C.)
2435 Adams Avenue

Spencer, Mrs, Martha L
26313 N. High Stiree!

Spurgeon, Mrs. Cynthia
Fannie B. Spurgeon
Weber Road. near Dayton

Stainbrook, Mr. and Mrs. James L. (ida)
2453 Dayton Avenue

Strain, Mr_ and Mrs. Benjamin (Harriet)
$2 Brickle Alley {probationers)
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Stone, Mrs. Mary
Frank C. Stone (probationer)
44 W, Dodridge

Stultz, Mr. and Mrs. Joseph (Agnes)
Blanche Stultz
Robinson BIk,, N. High Street

Stultz, William
2578 Terrace Avenue

Swoish, Mr, and Mrs, Willlam (Nettie)
115 E. Duncan Street

Swope, Mr. and Mrs. Francis C. (Annabel)
2667 Adams Avenue

Taylor, Mrs, Jennie
199 W, Lane Avenue

Thomas, Mrs, Meredith
Clara, ida M., and Georgia
237 W. Lane Avenue

Thrall, Harry
66 W, Tompkins

Throp, Mr. and Mrs. Aaron D. (Sarah E.)
Dayton Avenue, near Weber Road

Thrush, Mrs. Dottie E.
2505 Dayton Avenue

Town, Mr. and Mrs. Frank J. (Sarah A
Florence E.. Charles F,, Raymond E
81 W. Frambes Avenue

Tuller, Winnie
Johnstown, Ohio

Turner, Frank S,
84 W. Woodruff Avenue

Turner, Willlam M. and Ray
23 W. Tompkins

Vance, Mrs, Charles E, (Dell S.)
2097 1/ 2 N. Migh Street

Ward, Erwin
Clara and William Ward
144 W, Woodruff Avenue

Warner, Mr. and Mrs. John R, (Triphena R.)
Mina and Lovet! Warner
River Road

Watson, Mrs. Kate
Winnle
2487 Dayton Avenue

Weber, Eda
East of City limits

Webster, Mrs. Elizabeth
Evanston

Wells, Mrs, Melissa
72 E. Sixth Avenue

Wells, Nora 8,
125 W, Second Avenue

Welsh, Mr. and Mrs. William (Fringa)
2640 Findlay Avenue (probationer)

Wes!, Earl D,
41 W. Frambes Avenue

Westervelt, Mrs, Marcia F.
Fairview Avenue, Clintonville

Westervelt, Mr. and Mrs. Herbert L. (Mamie)
Neva M. Westervelt
Worthington Road, Clintonville

Westervelt, Mr. and Mrs, Howard B. (Alice §.)
Como Avenue, Clintonville

Whipp, Mr. and Mrs, William L. (Flora)
W. Lane Avenue, near Marbie Clirt

Whitehead, Mrs. H. L
Arthur M. Whitehead
29 W, Tompkins

Williams, Mrs. Hannah
Seventeenth Avenue, near dth

Wolcott, Clara
135 W, Frambes Avenue

Woodcock, Mrs. Della
129 W. Norwich Avenue

Woodruff, Mr. and Mrs. Charies M {Florence)
48 W. Woodruff Avenue

Youna, Mr. and Mrs, Horace G. (5§ Theresa)
Minnie B. and M. Wilbert Young
High Street, Clintonville

Young, Mrs, Isabelle
Mock Road, cor, Dayton Avenue

Young, Mary and Julia
Evanston

Zimmerman, Mrs Maggie 2.
Homer, Violet, Mildred, Lillian (probationer)
31 E. Clinton Avenue

Zinn, Mr. and Mrs. James H (Elizabeth)
57 E. Tompkins

Zinn, Mr. and Mrs. J Harvey (Emma)
58 E. Tompkins

Evanston was the area east of the Big Four
R.R. crossing at Hudson Street, only ex
tending to Weber Road on the north



